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JUDGE KEELING (Okay. Let's bring this

proceeding to order. Good norning. Today is Cctober
24th, 2022, the tine is 9:00 a.m The Conm ssion has
set this tine -- set aside this tine for an
evidentiary hearing in the case captioned as In the
Matter of the Application of Foxfire Utility Conpany
for Authority to Transfer Certain Water and Sewer
Assets Located in Stone County, Mssouri to QOzark

Cl ean Water Conpany, and in Connection Therew th,
Certain Oher Related Transactions, File Nunmber

VWM 2022- 0186.

My nane is Ross Keeling and I'mthe
Regul atory Law Judge presiding over this hearing. The
hearing is taking place in the Public Service
Conmm ssi on, Hearing Room 310 of the Governor Ofice
Building in Jefferson Cty, Mssouri. However, there
are sonme attendees that are also participating over
the internet via G sco WbEx.

Ckay. Let's have counsel for the parties
make their entries of appearance and pl ease speak into
t he m crophone.

MR. COOPER  Judge this is Dean Cooper
for Brydon, Swearengen and Engl and, PC, PO Box 456,
Jefferson Gty, Mssouri 65102. Along with Jesse
Craig, | represent both Foxfire Utility Conpany and
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QOzarks C ean Water Conpany.

MR. STACEY: Scott Stacey for Staff
counsel, 200 Madi son Street, Jefferson City, M ssour
65101.

MR. POSTON: Marc Poston for the Ofice
of the Public Counsel.

JUDGE KEELI NG  Thank you very much. For
those in the hearing room I|'Il ask everyone to
silence all their cell phones and nobile devices. And
If you're in the hearing roomand also | og onto WbEX,
| ask that you log off of WebEx to avoid feedback and
ot her potential audio issues.

Al so, for those in the hearing room
pl ease be aware of when your m crophones are on,

I ndicated by a green light, and when they are off.
For those connected via WbEx, | ask that you nute
your m crophone when not speaking.

Al so, the court reporter today is not
present in the hearing room but in -- is
participating via WbEx. Therefore, it's inportant
that you speak into the hearing room m crophones so
that she can hear all the proceedings. Since we don't
have a court reporter to handle exhibits, if you have
any additional exhibits that haven't been filed,

pl ease bring themup to ne and |I'll mark them
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1 Al so, because of that, if you have an
2 objection at any time, please identify yourself to --
3 so the transcriptionist won't have any probl ens
4 know ng who the speaker is.
5 Also, I'd like to wel come Comm ssioners
6 here who are present this nmorning. W have
7 Conmm ssioners Silvey and Conm ssioner Hol sman. Good
8 norning, gentlenen.
9 CHAI RMAN SI LVEY: Good norning, Judge.
10 COW SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  Good nor ni ng,
11 Judge.
12 CHAI RMAN SI LVEY: | think some ot her
13 Conmi ssioners may have joined as well.
14 COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Yes, Comm - -
15 Judge, this is Conm ssioner Kol knmeyer. |1'malso on
16 here.
17 JUDGE KEELING  Good norni ng,
18 Conmi ssi oner Kol kneyer.
19 COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Good nor ni ng.
20 COW SSI ONER COLEMAN:  And Conmi ssi oner
21 Col eman. Commi ssioner Coleman is in attendance.
22 JUDGE KEELI NG  Good norni ng,
23 Comm ssi oner.
24 COW SSI ONER COLEMAN:  Good nor ni ng.
25 JUDGE KEELING Do we have any
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.. Page 6
prelimnary matters before we -- before we actually

get started? None? Are there any changes to the
joint witnesses and cross-examnation filed on
Wednesday, October 12th? Okay. Are all exhibits
premarked and ready to go?

MR STACEY: Yes, Your Honor.

JUDGE KEELI NG Ckay. W'l have opening
statements. And we'll begin with Foxfire and QOzark.

MR COOPER: Thank you, Judge. Dean
Cooper appearing on behalf of both Foxfire and what |
wll refer to as OCWC

As you're probably aware, the M ssour
Suprene Court's assessnment of appropriate standard for
transactions involving the sale of public utility
property begins with a constitutional concept of
property rights. The owners of property have a
constitutional right to determ ne whether to sel
their property or not.

The M ssouri Suprenme Court has stated
within the context of such public utility sales, that
to deny themthat right would be to deny them an
i nci dent inportant to ownership of property. A
property owner should be allowed to sell his property
unless it would be detrinental to the public. In this

case, OCWC s acquisition of Foxfire's assets will not
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be detrinental to the public.

Foxfire currently provides both water and
sewer service to approximtely 258 custoners. And
known growth will add approximately 21 water and sewer
custonmers in the near future.

The Foxfire service area is a condom ni um
devel opnent. The conpany serves the condom ni um
units, three offices, four sw nmng pool/hot tub
areas, and two irrigation systens. The condom ni uns
typically represent second hones, investnent
properties, or both for their owners. Foxfire has no
other water or -- or sewer systens.

The primary owner of Foxfire is now
70 years old, has been involved in the water and sewer
busi ness for approximately 48 years and wi shes to
fully retire. He has no intention to be involved in
any capacity with the operation, naintenance or
managenent of public drinking water systens or
wast ewat er collection and treatnent systens in the
future

Ozarks Clean Water Conpany is a
non-profit sewer conpany under the M ssouri statutes
and a non-profit water conpany under the M ssouri
statutes. OCWC currently provides water and sewer

service to approximately 2,380 |ocations consisting of
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1,860 sewer connections, 300 water-only connections,

and 220 water and sewer connections at the sane
property, all provided through 13 water systens,

19 permtted sewer systens, 1 sewer treatnment system
2 sewer collection systens, and 1 interceptor system
that does not require permts.

OCWC enj oys a positive working
relationship with the Mssouri Departnment of Natural
Resources, which has relayed to Staff that there are
no outstanding concerns with service issues wth any
OCOWC system

OCWC s financial structure is designed to
address nultiple inprovenent and mai ntenance plans for
all of its properties. OCAC rates include operation,
mai nt enance, adm nistration, overhead, and reserve for
repair.

Currently OCWC s Board of Directors has
established a reserve account funded at 75 percent of
Its annual operation and naintenance budget. OCWC
proposes to use the existing rates for Foxfire
custoners for at |east one year followi ng the
acqui sition. Further, custoners will receive several
conveni ences associ ated with OCWC ownership that are
not currently available with Foxfire. These benefits

I nclude ACH auto paynment, e-mail billing, online
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paynment and account histories, and text alerts.

OCWC has econom es of scal e, experience,
technical ability and financial wherewthal that wll
enable it to provide water and sewer service to
Foxfire custoners and is in all ways qualified to own
and operate the Foxfire water and sewer assets.

The only party position in opposition is
fromthe Ofice of the Public Counsel, whose stated
opposition concerns the anmount of what it called
acquisition premum sonething that has no neani ng and
no inport in the world of a non-profit water and sewer
conpany such as OCWC

M. Casaletto has testified both as to
t he reasonabl eness of the purchase price agreed to in
this case and his analysis of the sufficiency of
existing rates in regard to naintaining safe and
adequate service to include a reserve for future
mai nt enance and repair needs.

It wll -- it wll not surprise ne if
M. Poston nmentions the case State Ex Rel. AG
Processing, Inc. v. PSC later in his opening or in the
briefs when we get around to that part of this
process.

Wil e we shoul d have plenty of

opportunity to discuss this case, if necessary, in the
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briefs, I1'd like to take a mnute to touch on it here.

The AG Processing case concerned UtiliCorp's attenpt
to purchase St. Joseph Light & Power. The Court sent
the case back for additional findings as the

Comm ssion did not initially address acquisition
prem um and, instead, said it could be addressed in a
future case.

O course, because UtiliCorp was a
regul ated conpany, as was St. Joseph Light & Power,
whet her UtiliCorp would be all owed recovery on and of
any acquisition prem um arguably woul d have had an
I npact on future rates.

That is not the case with OCWC, as OCOWC
Is a non-profit water and sewer conpany, not regul ated
by the Comm ssion and does not set rates within a
regul ated utility format calling for return on and of
I nvest ment s.

As | said before, and I'Il expand it a
little bit here, the terns "rate-base, acquisition
prem um net original cost" and "rate of return"
really have no inport or nmeaning within the operations
of OCWC.

The Conmmi ssion recognized in its Lake
Regi on Water and Sewer Conpany case from 2015 -- or

2017, which was cited in the Staff recomrendati on,
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that the water district purchaser in that case of

regul ated pro- -- properties had no notive for seeking
profits. Simlarly, in this case there's no
notivation for OCWC, as a non-profit water and sewer
conpany, to seek profits.

I n addressing the conparison that is
I mportant for the not-detrinental-to-the-public
standard, | think the conparison is between the
owner ship by OCAC under the terns proposed and
continued ownership by Foxfire.

| think it's significant that OOANC is
different frommny small regulated conpanies. First,
as a 501(c)(3) charitable non-profit and as nenti oned
before, there is no profit notive. As a non-profit,
OCWC serves the public by protecting water quality and
t he public health.

Second, a small stand-al one conpany such
as Foxfire has a nmuch higher cost per custoner because
It does not have the |large nunber -- |arger nunber of
custoners over which to spread its cost that OCWC
does. OCWC with over 30 water and wastewater systens
and just under 2,400 custoners can spread these costs
and have a much | ower cost per custoner on a
goi ng-forward basis.

The proposed transaction is not
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detrimental to the public and is |likely of benefit to

the public when one takes into account the |arger
nature of OCWC, the benefits to be available to the
Foxfire custoners, and the long-termstability of the
provi der of services for those Foxfire custoners.

The Commi ssion shoul d authorize the
transfer of assets from Foxfire to OCWC subject to the
five conditions proposed by Staff inits
recommendation that was filed on June 28th of 2022.

That's all | have, Your Honor.

JUDGE KEELI NG  Thank you very much.

Are there any Comm ssioners who have any
questions for M. Cooper?

Hearing none, we'll proceed.

MR COOPER  Thank you.

JUDCGE KEELING M. Stacey.

MR STACEY: (Good norning, Your Honor and
Conm ssion. My it please the Conm ssion.

My nane is Scott Stacey, |'mcounsel for
Staff. M. Jarrod Robertson and Keith Foster are here
today on behalf of Staff and avail able to answer any
questi ons you may have.

There are two issues before the
Comm ssion and they are: Should the Conm ssion find

that the sale or transfer of Fox Utility Conpany's
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Page 13
wat er and wastewater assets to Ozark C ean Water

Conpany is not detrinmental to the public interest and
approve the transaction; and if so, what conditions,
I f any, should the Conm ssion inpose on such approval .

The Conmm ssion should find the sale or
transfer is not detrinental to the public interest and
approve the transaction. The facts will show that
Staff did an investigation, reviewed corporation
docunents, and found that Ozarks C ean Water Conpany,
OCC, Board of Directors properly created a non-profit
wat er and sewer utility under the provisions of
Chapter 335 and organi zed originally as a non-profit
sewer utility wthin the paraneters of Sections
393. 825 through 393.861 of the Revised Statutes of
M ssouri .

Under the provisions of Section 393. 829,
subparagraph 15, non-profit sewer utilities may also
provide util- -- services and assune responsibilities
of non-profit water utilities.

Wiile OCWC is not subject to the
jurisdiction of the Comm ssion, OCWC is |led by a Board
of Directors elected by the custonmers who oversee and
control the operations of OCWC and preside over any
custonmer issues. And OCWC will remain under the

regul atory authority of the Departnment of Natural
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Resour ces.

OCWC currently maintain nultiple water
and sewer systens in the area and has kept these
systens in conpliance with DNR requirements. OCW\C
appears to have the technical and financial
wherewithal to operate and maintain the Foxfire system
as wel | .

OCWC received an offer from Foxfire,
whi ch was voted on by majority of the Board of
Directors and was accepted. Owner of Foxfire, Rick
Hel ns, abstained fromthe vote. OCAC has indicated
that it wll not raise rates upon Foxfire custoners
for at |east a year follow ng the acquisition.

Staff takes the position that the
proposed transfer and sale of assets from Foxfire to
OCWC is not detrinmental to the public interest and,

t herefore, recommends approval.

If so, what conditions, if any, should
t he Conm ssion approve on such approval ? Staff
recommends approval of the sale of the transfer and
the assets with the followi ng conditions: Require
Foxfire to notify the Conm ssion of closing on the
transfer of water and sewer assets to OCCWC within five
days after closing; authorize Foxfire to cease

providing service inmedi ately after closing on assets;
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If closing on Firefox -- Foxfire's assets does not

take place within 30 days following the effective date
of the Conmission's order, require Foxfire to submt a
status report in File Number Wv 2022-0186 within five
days after the 30-day period regarding the status of
closing and additional status reports within five days
after each additional 30-day period until closing
takes place or until Foxfire determ nes that the
transfer of the assets wll not occur.

|f Foxfire determnes that a transfer of
assets will not occur, require Foxfire to notify the
Comm ssion of such, and after the above notice of
transfer of assets to OCWC is received from Foxfire,
cancel the CCN applying to Foxfire Village of Indian
Poi nt service area. Thank you.

JUDGE KEELI NG  Thank you, Counselor. |Is
there -- are there any -- are there any questions from
t he Conm ssioners for M. Stacey?

COWM SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  No quest i ons,
Judge. Conm ssi oner Hol sman.

JUDGE KEELING Are there any others?
Hearing none, | -- we wll proceed.

Thank you very nuch, M. Stacey.

MR. POSTON: Good norning. My it please

the Commission. M nane is Marc Poston. |'mhere on
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behal f of the Ofice of the Public Counsel and the

publ i c.

When the Comm ssion granted a certificate
to Foxfire in 1995, it determned that it was in the
public interest for this systemto be regul ated by the
Commi ssion. Now the applicants bear the burden of
proving that the transfer of these custoners outside
of the Conmmission's jurisdiction, outside of the
Comm ssion's protection, under the terns proposed wl |
not be a detrinment to the public interest.

| believe the applicants will not be able
to establish that this transfer as proposed woul d not
be a detrinent to Foxfire's 258 custoners. | believe
t he evi dence necessary to deny the application can be
acconpl i shed through cross-exam nation and the
existing testinony fromthe Staff and the applicants.
So | know some of the Conm ssioners were wondering why
the OPC has no witness, and that is why.

And the first relevant fact the evidence
w Il denonstrate will be the existence of a very large
acqui sition prem um should the Comm ssion allow the
transfer at the price proposed. The Staff's
recommendation states that the purchase price includes
an alnost 1.2 mllion dollar acquisition prem um

which is 13 tinmes larger than the approxi mate --
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approxi mat e $90, 000 in rate-base.

Such a | arge acquisition prem um
certainly distinguishes this case fromthe past cases
t hat have been cited by Staff and the applicants. The
| ong- standi ng practice of the Conmm ssion in cases
where assets are transferred between two regul at ed
entities is to not allow recovery of an acquisition
prem um

| ask that the Conm ssion apply the sane
rational e regardl ess of where the assets are going.
Meani ng regardl ess of whether the transfer is to a
regul ated or an unregul ated entity.

And the basis for this is that the
ultimate inpact on the public that you're protecting
Is the same. The premumwl| likely at sone point in
time result in increased rates to cover the pay- --
the prem um

When transfer -- when transferring assets
to regulated entities, the Commssion rejects attenpts
to recover the premum and that's based on the
| ong- st andi ng net original cost rule.

To quote -- quote the Comm ssion fromthe
2004 St. Power nmerger with UtiliCorp that M. Cooper
mentioned before, that's Case EM 2000-292, the

Conmm ssi on explains, quote, As a general rule, only
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the original cost of utility plant to the first owner

devoting the property to public service, adjusted for
depreci ation, should be included in rate-base, end
quot e.

The Commi ssion stated that the purpose of
the net original cost rule is, quote, to protect
ratepayers fromhaving to pay higher rates sinply
because the ownership of utility plant has changed
w t hout any actual change in the useful ness of the
pl ant, end quote.

The Conm ssion goes onto explain that
this artificially inflates rate-base.

The Commi ssion al so states that the net
original cost rule works to the utility's advantage if
assets are acquired for a price below their book
val ue, which is common. When that happens, the
utility is still allowed to include the undepreciated
plant in rates. So the net original cost rule
provi des a bal ance between ratepayer and conpany.

The Staff states in its recomendation
t hat absent previous -- previous Conm ssion gui dance,
Staff woul d not reconmend approval of this proposed
transfer. And the Staff cited to two past Conm ssion
decisions that formthe basis for its decision not to

oppose the asset transfer.
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And I'Il address the nost recent first,

which is Case W\ 2017-0186. This was a transfer of
assets from Lake Regi on Water and Sewer to Canden
County Public Water Supply District. The purchase
price nore than doubl ed the value of rate-base.

In that -- in that case, the Staff also
questioned the close relationship between the buyer
and the seller. The Staff reconmended the Conm ssion
reject the transfer.

But the Conm ssion approved the transfer
anyway. The Conm ssion said Canden Water District is
a political subdivision that has no notive to seek --
for seeking profits, it's answerable to voters, and
it's obligated by statute to set reasonable rates.

However, future attenpts to seek profits
are not the concern. The concern is the huge
$1.2 mllion debt that Foxfire custonmers will carry
for the next 20 years. Profit notivation is
irrelevant to this point. And sure, OCANC nenbers vote
on their directors, but they can't vote to expunge
this huge debt burden.

If you approve the sale at a price that
I ncludes the premum the damage is already done. The
burden will plague these custoners for two decades.

Al so distinguishing the Foxfire case from
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the Lake Region case is that the Lake Regi on prem um

was 1.6 tines rate-base; whereas, here the Foxfire
price is 13 tinmes rate-base. The Conm ssion al so
Indicated that -- in the Lake Region case, that an
I ndependent val uation of the system supported the
price. In the present case, he have no independent
val uation. W do have a close relationship between
t he buyer and the seller.

In the other case referenced by the
Staff, WM 2015-0321, Ozark Shores Water sought to
transfer assets also to Canden Water District. And
the Staff's reasons for reconmending a rejection of
the transfer was a concern over self-dealing anong
| eadership of the applicants.

To overcone this concern, the Conm ssion
hel d that the conpany did not participate in the
val uation analysis and did not attenpt to influence
the price of the assets. The evidence in this case
w || denonstrate the exact opposite is true for the
proposal before you.

My post-hearing brief will explain all of
this in greater detail that will distinguish this case
fromthe past decisions and will explain exactly how
the transfer would be a detrinent.

And the last point |I'd like to nake is to
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briefly discuss custoner inpact. And | include some

math in a footnote in ny position statement that |I'm
going to revise here because | understated the harnfu
I npact .

According to the prom ssory note attached
to M. Casaletto's testinony, OCAC will be obligated
to pay M. Helnms $6,599.41 per nonth starting in 2023
and ending 20 years later in 2043. |f we divide that
nmont hly obligation by the 258 custoners on the system
that equal s $25.57 per nonth per custoner.

That's a very large and extrenely
unreasonabl e burden and clearly a detrinment to these
custoners. That anounts to approxi mately 80, 000 per
year to M. Helns for a systemthat brings in
approxi mately $200, 000 per year, meani ng 40 percent of
the revenue coming in will be used to pay this debt.

And it doesn't matter if present rates
can cover that $25 burden because that 20-year
obligation renoves the cushion that woul d otherw se be
able to absorb future investnents. Present rates are
set such that if the conpany needed to nake a | arge
investnment in plant, it could likely do so w thout
needing to raise rates. But not if this transfer is
allowed with a premum Rates would have to go up

These custoners in this systemare
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currently under the Conm ssion's protection and we ask

that you sinply protect themas intended. W ask that
you deny the transfer until they cone back with a sale
price that does not include the prem um

JUDCGE KEELING Are there any questions
for M. Poston fromthe Conm ssioners?

CHAI RVAN SILVEY: Judge, this is
Comm ssioner Silvey. | have a question.

JUDGE KEELI NG  Ckay.

CHAI RVAN SILVEY: M. Poston, did | hear
you correctly? You said you didn't put on w tnesses
or offer testinony because you're going to build a
case conpletely on cross-exam nation?

MR POSTON: Well, and on the pre-filed
testinmony of Staff and the conpany. And | wll do a
little cross, not a whole |ot of cross. But | think
for the nost part, the testinony will be able to rely
on existing testinony.

CHAI RVAN SILVEY: Okay. | just find that
hi ghly unusual .

Thank you, Judge.

JUDGE KEELI NG  Thank you. Are there any
ot her questions fromthe Comm ssioners? Hearing none,
t hank you very nuch, M. Poston.

M. Cooper, would you like to call your
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first witness?

MR. COOPER W would. W would cal
Mster -- M. Helnms. Judge, do you need to swear in
M. Helns before we nove forward?

JUDCGE KEELING Do you swear or affirmto
tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth in your testinony, so help you God?

MR. HELMS: | do.

JUDGE KEELI NG  Thank you. You may
proceed.

MR COOPER:  Thank you, Judge.

GARAH F. (RICK) HELMS,

havi ng been duly sworn by Judge Keeling, testified as
fol | ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR COOPER:

Q M. Helnms, would you state your full nane
for us?

A My full name is Garah Fred Helns. | go
by the nicknanme of Rick.

Q What is your position with Foxfire
Utility Conpany?

A I'mthe president of Foxfire Wility
Conpany and |'malso a trustee of the Rick and Janet
Hel ms Revocabl e Trust that owns all of the outstanding

shares of Foxfire Uility Conpany.
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Q Have you caused to be prepared for the

pur poses of this proceeding certain direct and
surrebuttal testinony in question and answer forn?
A | have.
Q I's it your understanding that that
testinony has been marked as Exhibits 1 and 2 for
I dentification?
A It is.
Q | think based upon our prior

conversations, there's a couple of things that we

probably need to correct in your direct testinony. |Is
that consistent with your -- your understandi ng?

A Yes, it is.

Q Ckay. In your direct testinony on page 7

and then line 20, there's a reference to a Decenber
31, 2019 vote by the Board of OCWC to purchase
Foxfire's assets. Is it your -- or should that date
i nstead be Decenber 9th of 20197

A Yes. That was a -- a typographical error
on ny part.
Q And then also on that same page, lines 7

through 12, there's a question and an answer
concerning rate-base. |Is it your understanding
that -- that when we -- when | offer testinony, | wll

not offer that question and answer?
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A That is ny understanding, yes.

Q Ckay. If | were to ask you the questions
which are contained in Exhibits 1 and 2 today, would
your answers, with the adjustnents we've just
di scussed, be the sanme?

A Wul d be the sane.

Q Are those answers true and correct to the
best of your information, know edge and belief?

A They are.

MR. COOPER  Your Honor, at this tine |
woul d offer Exhibits 1 and 2 into evidence. And
again, as to Exhibit 1, that would be with the
exception of direct testinony page 7, lines 7 to 12.
| would offer with that -- wth that change,

Exhibits 1 and 2 into evidence and then tender the
W tness for cross-exam nation.

JUDGE KEELING Okay. As to Exhibit 1
and Exhibit 2, are there any objections? M. Stacey?

MR. STACEY: No objections, Your Honor.

JUDCGE KEELING M. Poston?

MR POSTON:  No objections.

JUDGE KEELI NG (Ckay then. Exhibits 1
and Exhibits 2 are admtted on the record.

(Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2 were received

into evidence.)
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JUDGE KEELI NG Proceed.

MR. COOPER | believe -- nothing nore
fromme and | would turn it over to cross-exam nation,
Your Honor .

JUDCE KEELING M. Stacey, do you have
any cross-exam nation for M. Hel ns?

MR STACEY: Just a couple, Judge.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR, STACEY:

Q Good norning. How are you today?

A ' mgood. Thank you.

Q Now, you're the owner of Foxfire; is that
correct?

A That's correct.

Q And previously your -- years ago, you

were a nenber of OCWC Board of Directors; 1s that

right?

A That's correct.

Q And when the vote was taken to accept the
offer fromFox- -- or OCWC Board of Directors, when
they accepted the offer -- or voted on the offer, were

you a part of that vote?

A | was not present at that board neeting,
no.

Q Did you abstain fromthat vote?

A | was not present so | did not need to
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abstain, but I would have abstained, yes. So | guess

t he answer is yes.

Q Ckay. Are you currently a nenber of the
Board of Directors for OCWC?

A No, sir.

Q When did you resign fromthat?

A |'d have to check ny records, but |

believe it was in August of 2019.

Q Ckay. Did you -- did you reviewthe

Staff's recomrend- -- or menorandunf
A. Yes.
Q Did you review the part where it tal ked

about previous cases that the Comm ssion granted

approval ?

A ["msorry? | didn't understand your
guesti on.

Q There were two cases nentioned in
their -- in the Staff's nmenorandum - -

A Yes.

Q -- that indicated from 2015 and a 2017

case. Do you renmenber those?
A Yes, sir.
Q Where the Conmm ssion approved the sale.
A Yes, sir.
Q One of themwas WM 2015-2- -- 0231. The
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purchase price there was 5.2 mllion.

A Yes, sir.

Q And the rate-base was 2.9 mllion.

A Yes, sir.

Q And the Comm ssion -- the Conm ssion
approved that sale; is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q In WM 2017-0186, the Staff recomended
di sapproval for that one; is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And the purchase price of that was

6 mllion, and it was 155 percent above the rate-base
of 2.4 mllion; is that right?
A Yes, sSir.
Q And the Conm ssion approved that purchase
and sale to the other conpany; is that correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q And in this case, yours is only 13 --
13 tinmes?
A Yes, Sir.
MR STACEY: Al right. Nothing further,
Judge.
JUDGE KEELI NG  Any cross-exan nation,
M. Poston?

MR POSTON: | have no questions. Thank
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1 vyou.

2 JUDGE KEELING M. Helns, you may be

3 excused.

4 THE W TNESS: Thank you

5 JUDGE KEELI NG  Yes? Pardon ne?

6 MR. STACEY: Commi ssion have any

7 questions?

8 JUDGE KEELING Oh, excuse ne.

9 apologize. Please sit down.

10 MR STACEY. Sorry, Your Honor.

11 JUDGE KEELING | apol ogize. Yeah. Do
12 the Conm ssioners have any questions for M. Helns?
13 COW SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  No questi ons,

14 Judge.

15 JUDCGE KEELI NG  Any others? GCkay. Now,
16 M. Helns, you may be excused.

17 THE W TNESS:. Thank you

18 JUDGE KEELING M. Cooper, do you have
19 any other w tnesses?

20 MR. COOPER Wt do. W would call

21 M. Casaletto to the stand, please.

22 JUDGE KEELING M. Casaletto, do you
23 solemmly affirmthe testinony you give in this hearing
24 shall be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but
25 the truth?
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MR. CASALETTO | do.

JUDGE KEELI NG Thank you. You nmay
proceed.
DAVI D CASALETTQ,
havi ng been duly sworn by Judge Keeling, testified as
fol |l ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR, COOPER:

Q Woul d you pl ease state your -- your full
name?

A Davi d Louis Casal etto.

Q M. Casaletto, what is your position with
Ozarks C ean Water Conpany?

A |''m president of the Board of Directors.

Q Have you caused to be prepared for the

pur poses of this proceeding certain direct and
surrebuttal testinony in question and answer forn?

A | have.

Q I's it your understandi ng that that
testinony has been nmarked as Exhibits 100 and 101 for
i dentification?

A Yes.

Q Do you have any changes that you woul d
like to nmake to that testinony at this tine?

A No.

Q If I ask you the questions which are
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contained in Exhibits 100 and 101 today, would your

answers be the sane?
A Yes, they woul d.
Q Are those answers true and correct to the
best of your information, know edge and belief?
A Yes.
MR. COOPER  Your Honor, | would offer
Exhi bits 100 and 101 at this tine.
JUDGE KEELI NG Are there any objections?
MR STACEY: No objections for Staff,
Judge.
MR POSTON:  No objections.
JUDGE KEELI NG  Ckay then. Exhibits 100
and 101 are received into evidence.
(Exhibit 100 and Exhibit 101 were
received into evidence.)
MR, COOPER W would then tender
M. Casaletto for cross-exam nation.
JUDCGE KEELING M. Stacey?
MR STACEY: No questions, Judge.
JUDCGE KEELING M. Poston.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR POSTON:
Q Good norning, M. Casaletto.
A Good nor ni ng.

Q So your direct testinony identifies at
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| east three conpani es where you serve as president; is

that correct?

A Yes.

Q And one of those, as you just nentioned
wth M. Cooper, was OCNC?

A Yes.

Q And anot her one that you nention in your

testinony is H2Ozarks; is that correct?

A Yes, it is.

Q And do you receive conpensation for your
work with H2Ozar ks?

A Not directly. | -- 1 -- nmy pay directly
conmes fromthe third conpany.

Q Ckay. And which conpany is that?

A Ozark Environnental Services.

Q Ckay. And you and M. Helns worked for

Ozark Environnental Services together in 2016,

correct?

A Yes, we did.

Q And QOzar ks Environnental Services --
woul d you pl ease explain what -- what does Ozarks

Environnmental Services do for Foxfire?
A They provi de the operation and
mai nt enance, |licensed and -- operation workers that go

to the plant, check it out, nake sure it's running
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properly. |If sonething needs repaired, they fix it.
And just generally nake sure it's neeting permt --
DNR permt requirenents.

Q And if the Conm ssion were to approve

this transfer, the plan is to keep Ozarks
Environnmental Services running the Foxfire systenf

A It is. W -- yes.

Q So you first brought this proposed
transfer of the Foxfire systemto the Ozarks C ean
Wat er Conpany board in a July 10th, 2019 19 e-nuil; is
that correct?

A | did.

MR POSTON: (Ckay. Judge, |I'd like to
have an exhibit marked. | believe this wll be 300.
| think that's the nunber set | got.

JUDGE KEELING Ckay. Bring it on up.
What nunber did you say this was, M. Poston?

MR POSTON: 300. Judge, |'mnot sure
how we go about having an official copy that we give
to the court reporter. Do you just want nme to take
the copy that |1've given to himand give it to you
when |' m done?

JUDGE KEELING | would like you to
e-mai |l a copy of that to Exhibits@SC. no. gov.

MR. POSTON: Ckay. Thank you.
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BY MR POSTON:

Q So M. Casaletto, |I'm handing you what's
been marked as Exhi bit 300. Have you had a chance to
| ook at that?

A Yes.

Q And is this the e-mail that you sent to
the Board of Directors explaining the proposed
transfer of assets?

A Yes.

MR. POSTON: And Your Honor, | would Iike
to offer Exhibit 300.

JUDGE KEELING Are there any objections?

MR COOPER  No, Your Honor.

MR STACEY: No, Your Honor.

JUDCGE KEELI NG  Hearing none, Exhibit 300
I's received into evidence.

(Exhibit 300 was received into evidence.)

MR. POSTON: | have another exhibit 1'd
i ke to have marked as 301.
BY MR POSTON:

Q So inthe e-mail that is Exhibit 300,
it's an attenpt to set up a board neeting, correct?

A Yes.

Q And then on July 15th, 2019, the board

did neet to discuss the acquisition of --
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A Yes.

Q -- of Foxfire, correct?

A Yes.

Q I's Exhibit 301 that | handed you, is this

an accurate copy of the Board of Directors neeting
mnutes fromthat July 15th, 2019 neeting?
A Yes, it is.

MR, POSTON: |I'd offer Exhibit 301 into
the record.

JUDCE KEELING Are there any objections?

MR STACEY: No objections from Staff,
Judge.

JUDGE KEELI NG Hearing none, Exhibit 301
I's received into evidence.

(Exhibit 301 was received into evidence.)

MR. POSTON: That's all the cross | have,
Judge.

JUDGE KEELI NG Thank you. Are there any
questions fromthe Conmm ssioners? Hearing none, |'lI
ask if there is any recross requested or does anybody
el se --

MR COOPER | think I"'mup for redirect
maybe, Judge.

JUDGE KEELING OCh. Redirect. How about

redirect then?
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REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR, COOPER:

Q M. Casaletto, a couple of things. Do
you have that last exhibit, 301, in front of you that

M. Poston put into evidence?

A | do.

Q And that's the board m nutes, correct?
A It is.

Q Ckay. Two -- two questions. Well, I'm

not going to limt nyself because it will be nore than
two questi ons.

Did the board, subsequent to this
meeting, address this purchase wth Foxfire? And what
| nmean by that is, this price that's listed is one
mllion dollars financed and -- and $55, 000 down. And
we know that's not the -- the transaction that's
bef ore the Conm ssion today.

So | assune that the board addressed this
purchase |l ater than the July 2019 neeting that's
represented here?

A Yes. Yes. W -- the board came back
and -- and circunstances changed. And while the
paynments didn't change over the 20-year period, the --
the terns of the purchase price did change.

Q And when did that happen, approximtely?

A Decenber of 2019.
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Q And by that time, M. Helns had resigned

fromthe Board of Directors, correct?

A Yes. He resigned in August.

Q Ckay. Subsequent to the Decenber
meeting, did the board take up that -- the questions

fromthe Decenber nmeeting nore recently?

A Yes. There -- there was a question
raised and -- and we decided it would be best if we
would -- going to get ny words -- approve --

re-approve by resolution what happened in 2019. And
t hat happened just lately, in 2022.

Q Ckay. And -- and so the board ratified
that earlier decision at that tine?

A It did. Yes, it did.

Q Now, |ooking at the -- the board m nutes
in front of you, there's a reference to Director
Meyer kord has inquired about raising the current
rates.

I's there any plan to raise the current
rates for Foxfire?

A There's no plan to raise rates. W, as a
board, look at all rates and just see if there's --
equi pnent or chemicals or those type of things go up
each year. But other than that, there's no plan to

rai se rates.
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Q There's also a reference to profit

margin. Does OCWC have a profit?
A No, it doesn't. And our accounting
sof tware, Qui ckBooks, by default calls that profit and
loss. And -- and in the non-profit world, which al
three conpanies that |I'mpresident of are 501(c)(3)
charitable non-profits, that word shoul d be surpl us.
Q And what happens to surplus if you have
surplus at OCWC?
A It just goes to reserve for repair or
just used for the day-to-day activities of the
busi ness. There's no profit, there's no dividends

paid. Just stays in the conpany.

Q Now, do you still have in front of you
Exhi bit 3007

A | do.

Q Now, that's your calculation as of --

kind of a rough calculation of the financials related

to this purchase as of July 10 of 2019, correct?

A Yes, it is.
Q | see on there that at the tinme you were
assumng 252 units. If you were to do that

cal cul ati on today, would you use 255 units?
A No. |In fact, the current nunber of
units, 258, but then if you add in the 30 under
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construction or under planning -- there's an

addi ti onal ampunt of units being built. So we'd use a
little bit different nunber if we were going to

cal cul ate today. Higher.

Q There -- there would be nore units,
nmore --

A Yes.

Q -- nore custoners essentially, correct?

A That's right, yes.

MR COOPER: Al right. That's all the
questions | have, Your Honor.

JUDCGE KEELI NG  Thank you.

MR COOPER | think you can step down,
M. Casal etto.

JUDCGE KEELI NG  You can step down,
M. Casaletto. You're excused. Do you have any
recross? |'msorry. Excuse nme. Ckay. Are there any
ot her w tnesses?

MR. COOPER No nore w tnesses for the
applicant or OCWC.

JUDGE KEELING M. Stacey, does Staff
have any w tnesses?

MR. STACEY: Yes, Your Honor. W have
two. Staff calls Jarrod Robertson.

JUDGE KEELING M. Robertson, do you
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solemly swear or affirmthat the testinmony you give

in this hearing shall be the truth, the whole truth
and not hing but the truth?
MR, ROBERTSON. | do.
JUDCGE KEELI NG  Thank you. You may
proceed, M. Stacey.
MR STACEY: Thank you, Your Honor.
JARRCD ROBERTSON,
havi ng been duly sworn by Judge Keeling, testified as
fol | ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR. STACEY:
Q Wul d you pl ease state and spell your
name for the record.
A Jarrod Janes Robertson, J-a-r-r-o-d,
J-a-me-s, last name Robertson, R-o0-b-e-r-t-s-o-n.
Q And by whom are you enpl oyed?
A M ssouri Public Service Conm ssion.
Q And what is your position there?
A |''ma senior research data analyst with
the Water and Sewer and St eam Departnent.
Q And have you prepared and filed testinony
in this proceedi ng?
A Yes, | have.
Q Specifically rebuttal testinmony filed on
Sept enber 23rd, 2022 as set forth in Staff Exhibit
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Nunber 2007?
A Yes.
Q Do you have any changes or corrections to

make to this document set forth in Staff Exhibit 200?
A Yes. W have outlined a few bullets that
could be edited at this tine.
MR STACEY: Perm ssion to approach,
Judge, the wtness.
JUDGE KEELI NG Go ahead.
BY MR STACEY:

Q And do you have those changes in front of
you?

A Yes, | do.

Q And what are those changes?

A As | said, these are witten out in a

bullet formso they may not flow snoothly. But we
changed a pa- -- a date on Schedule JJR-2 from
Decenber 32nd to Decenber 31.

Page 12 of 20, in the "fron portion on
page 6, ny title should be anal yst not anal yst --
excuse ne, not analysis. It should be analyst. And
then for Keith Foster, his -- his title was reversed.
It shoul d be Financial and Business Anal ysis Division.

Al so, we have an edition of -- to a

repeating page 2 of 4 in each header on each page.
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And then in Scott Stacey's line in the

form-- "fronf portion on the first page we have no
space between June and 28. That concludes all edits.

Q Ckay. 1'dlike to-- all right. Are
those -- or if | were to ask you those same questions
I n those docunents, with these changes, would your
answers be the sane?

A Yes.

Q Are those questions and answers true and
correct, to the best of your know edge and belief?

A Yes.

MR STACEY: Your Honor, | offer
Exhi bit 200 to be admtted into evidence, as well as
t he changes/corrections docunent that | handed to the
parties as -- be admtted as Exhibit 203,

JUDGE KEELING Are there any objections
to the adm ssion of Exhibit Nunmber 200 and Exhi bit
Nunber 203 into evidence?

MR POSTON. No, Judge.

MR. COOPER: No objection.

JUDGE KEELI NG  Hearing none, Exhibits
200 and 203 are received into evidence.

(Exhibit 200 and Exhibit 203 were
recei ved into evidence.)

MR. STACEY: Staff tenders M. Robertson
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for cross-exam nation.

JUDGE KEELI NG  Any cross-exam nation for
M. Robertson?

MR. COOPER: None from Foxfire or OCAC.

JUDGE KEELING M. Poston?

MR. POSTON: Thank you. | do have a few.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR, POSTON:

Q Good nmorning, M. Robertson

A Good nor ni ng.

Q First, I'll hand you a docunent. @Qve
you a mnute to | ook at that.

MR COOPER M. Poston, do you have
copi es of what you' ve handed the w t ness?

BY MR POSTON:

Q So in your meno in this case, | believe
you may have referenced the initial case that
Foxfire -- well, let -- let me scratch that.

The docunent |'ve handed you, would you
agree it's the Amended Application of Foxfire UWility
Conpany, Case Nunber WA-95-31 dated Novenber 17th,
19947

A It does appear so.
Q And |'ve flagged a line on page 3 of that
for you. And it's down towards the bottom it's in

paragraph 8. |1'mjust going to read that and you tell

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Judge Ross Keeling
Oct ober 24, 2022

. Page 44
me if |'ve read that accurately. There's a sentence

that starts "when fully devel oped.”
So the sentence is: Wen fully

devel oped, this 50-acre devel opment will contain

1
2
3
4
5 89 buildings, having six units each for a total of 534
6 dwelling units.

7 Did | read that accurately?

8 A Yes.

9 Q | have anot her docunent.

10 MR POSTON: | apologize. | don't have
11 additional copies, but | wll showit to counsel

12 before | approach the wtness.

13 JUDGE KEELI NG  Ckay.

14 BY MR POSTON:

15 Q If you could take a nonent to get

16 famliar with that docunent. And ny question's going
17 to be pretty quick. Wuld you agree that the docunent
18 | handed you is the Staff nmenmorandumin Case Nunber

19 WR-2000 -- or 2002-1162 dated Cctober 15th, 20022

20 A It does appear to be Staff's nmenorandum
21 for that case, yes.

22 Q And | flagged a sentence on page 2. Can
23 you please turn there? Well, actually if | can get

24 you to turn back actually to the start. Just down at

25 the bottom "background," it tal ks about Foxfire
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Utility Conpany. And this identifies this case as a

smal | conpany rate increase request to Foxfire; is
that correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And then on the page 2 what |'ve
flagged is in the second full paragraph, the very | ast
sentence. |'mjust going to read a portion of that.
It says: The conpany provi des water service to
approxi mately 184 custoners in Stone County.

Did | read that correctly?

A Yes.

Q And currently the conpany has 258
custoners; is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q So woul d you agree that in the past
20 years, the conpany has added only 74 custoners?

A The math seens correct, yes.

Q And that's roughly 3.7 custoners per

year; is that correct?

A |'d have to use a calculator for that.
Q Ckay. Do you have a cal cul ator?
A Sure. | didn't even see it at first.

Could I have those figures again, please?
Q Yeah. It's -- | guess it would be the

di fference between 258 custoners and 184 custoners.
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Wi ch do you get 747

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And then you divide that by the
20 years since they -- the conpany was at 184
custoners. That woul d be roughly 3.7 custoners per
year; is that correct?

A Yes.

MR POSTON: Thank you, Judge. | don't
intend to offer these. These are Conmm ssion records,
but | have no nore questions.

JUDGE KEELING Any redirect? Hearing
none, are there any questions fromthe Comm ssioners?
Ckay. No other needs, M. Robertson, you're excused.
Thank you.

M. Stacey, do you have any ot her
W t nesses?

MR STACEY: Yes, Your Honor. Staff
calls Keith Foster.

JUDGE KEELING Do you solemmly swear or
affirmthat the testinony you give in this hearing
shall be the truth, the whole truth and nothi ng but
the truth?

MR FOSTER | do.

JUDGE KEELI NG  Proceed.

MR STACEY: Thank you, Judge.
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KEI TH FOSTER

havi ng been first duly sworn by Judge Keeli ng,

testified as fol |l ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR STACEY:

Q

Wul d you pl ease state and spell your

nane for the record.

A.
Q
A.
Q
A.

supervi sor.

Q

Keith Foster, K-e-i-t-h F-o0-s-t-e-r.
And by whom are you enpl oyed?
Public Service Comm ssion.

And what is your position there?

| amthe -- a utility regulatory auditor

Ckay. And have you prepared and filed

testinony in this proceedi ng?

A
Q

Yes, | did.

Specifically rebuttal testinony filed on

Sept enber 23, 2022 as set forth in Staff Exhibit 201?

A.
Q

Yes, | did.

Do you have any changes or corrections to

make to this docunent set forth in Exhibit 2017

A
Q

No, | do not.

If I were to ask you the sane questions

In that docunment today, would your answers be the

sanme?

Yes, they woul d.
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Q Are those questions and answers true and

correct to the best of your know edge and belief?
A Yes, they are.

MR, STACEY: Your Honor, | offer Exhibit
201 into evidence.

JUDGE KEELING Are there any objections
to the adm ssion of 200 -- Exhibit Nunber 201 into
evi dence?

MR COOPER  No, Your Honor.

JUDCGE KEELI NG  Exhibit Nunmber 201 is
received into evidence.

(Exhibit 201 was received into evidence.)

MR. STACEY. Staff tenders M. Foster for
Cross- exam nati on.

JUDGE KEELI NG Proceed.

MR COOPER | have no questions, Your
Honor .

JUDCGE KEELING M. Poston?

MR POSTON:  No questi ons.

JUDGE KEELING Are there any questions
for M. Foster fromthe Comm ssioners? Well, hearing
none, | have no questions. Are there any other

questions for M. Foster?
MR. STACEY: No, Your Honor.
JUDGE KEELING Okay. That --
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M. Foster, you're excused.

MR. STACEY: And the Staff has no further
W t nesses, Judge.

JUDGE KEELI NG Thank you. M. Poston?

MR, POSTON: | have no w tnesses.

JUDGE KEELING M. Poston -- okay.

Are there any final matters that we need
to discuss?

MR STACEY: No, Your Honor.

JUDCGE KEELING M. Stacey, before you
| eave, could you bring me up anot her copy of Exhibit
2037

Ckay. There are no late filing of
exhibits and the schedule for briefing is in the order
setting procedural schedule issued -- order setting
t he procedural schedule issued on August 17th of this
year. Initial briefs are to be filed sinultaneously
no | ater than Novenmber 16th, 2022. And reply briefs
are to be filed sinultaneously no | ater than Novenber
30t h, 2022.

Are there any other matters that need to
be addressed before we adjourn?

MR POSTON: Quick question, Judge. |
just want to make sure | got the e-mail address

correct for sending those two exhibits. It's
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Exhi bits, plural, at PSC. np.gov?

matters that

I s adj our ned.

JUDGE KEELING That's correct.
MR. POSTON: Ckay. Thank you.

Page 50

JUDGE KEELING |If there are no other

need to be addressed, then the proceedi ng

W are off the record.

(Wher eupon, the proceedi ngs concl uded at
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1

2 CERTI FI CATE OF REPORTER

3

4 |, Tracy Thorpe Taylor, CCR No. 939, within the
5 State of Mssouri, do hereby certify that the

6 testinony appearing in the foregoing matter was duly
7 sworn by me, via WebEx; that the testinony of said

8 witnesses was taken by ne to the best of ny ability
9 and thereafter reduced to typewiting under ny

10 direction; that | amneither counsel for, related to,
11 nor enployed by any of the parties to the action in
12 which this matter was taken, and further, that | am
13 not a relative or enployee of any attorney or counsel
14 enployed by the parties thereto, nor financially or
15 otherwise interested in the outcone of the action.

16

17 8/“@%}) J%m

18 Tracy Thorpe Tayl or, CCR

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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